TIOGA COUNTY ED&P/TOURISM/CCE/SOIL & WATER
LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA
April 8, 2025
1:00 PM

e  MINUTES
o Approval of minutes of March 4, 2025

e FINANCIAL
o Economic Development
o Planning
o Sustainability Management

e  OLD BUSINESS
o Reports
Grants
Economic/Community Development
Land Bank
Workforce Development
Planning
Sustainability Management
IDA
Misc.

O 0O O O O O O O

e  NEW BUSINESS
o Reports
Grants
Economic/Community Development
Land Bank
Workforce Development
Planning
Sustainability Management
IDA
Misc.

O 0O 0O 0O 0O O O O

e PERSONNEL

e  RESOLUTIONS
D08-Adopting the 2025-2034 Tioga County Local Solid Waste
Management Plan
D26-Accept NY SWIMS Grant Award and Modify 2025 Budget
D34-Appoint Member (BWoods) to the Tioga Co LDC Board

e  PROCLAMATIONS - N/A
e ADJOURNMENT



INIICTNIAI NCVUCI ADRICKMT 1 AR

') 1 In}
NU T LUULAL UL\

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING
TOURISM/AGRICULTURE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

March 4, 2025

UV AL UDLYLLU vilLiv i AU

ATTENDEES:
Legislators: Ron Ciofoli, Keith Flesher, Dennis Mullen, Marte Sauerbrey

Staff: Brittany Woodbumn, Linda Sampson, Sean Lanning, Cathy Haskell, Jackson Bailey
Guests: Becca Maffei, Tourism Director

Legislator Jake Brown was not in attendance.

Committee Chair Ron Ciotoli, called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLANNING (ED&P): Agenda and attachments previously
emailed.
I. MINUTES
A. Approval of minutes from February 4, 2025 -Committee Chair Ron Ciotoli asked for
approval of the minutes from the February 4, 2025, committee meeting. Legislator
Flesher made a motion to accept the minutes from the February 4, 2025, meeting,
seconded by Legislator Mullen. All were in favor.

Ms. Woodburn reported the following:
Il. FINANCIAL
A. 2025 Budget
1. Economic Development
e Year-to-Date Budget is tracking.
2. Planning
e Year-to-Date Budget is tracking.
3. Sustainability Management
e Year-to-Date Budget is tracking.

IIl. OLD BUSINESS/NEW BUSINESS
A. Reports
1. Economic Development and Planning — In keeping with staff reporting Ms.
Woodburn infroduced Sean Lanning, Community Development Specialist. Mr.
Lanning reported on the projects he is working on.



Workforce Development/Talent Supply Table

Continue to work on 3 Talent Supply Table committees.

District 214 from Chicago, a leader in career learmning in high school education,
presented at the February Superintendents group meeting.

Tours of iIM3NY, Elderwood '

Completed 2024-2025 Education Workforce Reports.

Worked with Mr. Goodrich on a GIS map showing businesses and what they
offer; easily navigated by schools. The feedback has been good.
Collaborated with SUNY Broome on Manufacturing Day; 30 students in
attendance, as well as four school districts, three Tioga County businesses.
Assisted Lockheed Martin with Engineering Events.

Participated in a Career Panel with Northern Tioga Chamber of Commerce; 44
students aftended.

Connected Newark Valley Special Education Department with Open Door
Mission; special needs students in OPWDD.

Assisting with the Twin Tiers Regional Job Fair coming up on March 25t in
Waverly.

OA CTE/BT BOCES Satellite Campus - waiting for funding.

Completed the Business Leads Fellowship Program and the Talent Pipeline
Management Program.

Completed I4A Training.

Community Development

Snowmobile grant audit in January was completed.

Met with Mr. Becker, USDA, to discuss REAP Board appointments. Current
president is stepping down; working on making sure REAP funds are available.
Working on CDBG Public Facilities Grant with Catholic Charities for mobile food
truck; awarded $240,000.00+.

Created a document listing all Tioga County Foundations and their grant
requirements.

Participated in a panel discussion with 7 of the 9 Foundations; 36 people were in
aftendance.

Working with Open Door Mission and Floyd Hooker Foundation to get a program
started where Floyd Hooker Foundation would provide funds for necessary items
for students in need.

Met with Coburn Free Library to discuss HVAC Project. They submitted a grant
application to the State for a construction project. A meeting was set up to
discuss who might be interested in assisting with funding for the project.

. Tioga County Tourism — Monthly report previously emailed and is in the committee
packet. Becca Maffei, Tourism Director, was in attendance and reviewed her
report highlighting the financial challenges with | Love NY indicating the program is
changing and there is the possibility that it may go away in 2026. Ms. Maffei
reported applying for a USDA Grant, if approved the funds will be available in July
and will help fill in the gaps for 2025. Ms. Maffei pointed out that the board is in
support of finding ways fo be sustainable financially in the future without relying on |



Love NY funds, adding that It's something we must be aware of. Two projects that
need work this year are the Travel Guide and updating the website.

Ms. Maffei distributed the new Tioga County Agricultural Resource Group (ARG)
brochure, noting that work is being done to increase the visibility of ARG. What can
be done for farmers and what resources are available. A lot of organizations work
on this committee.

Ms. Maffei put the drafted travel guide on the screen in the conference room as
well as many pictures and videos that she has on file for use on social media,
websites and/or projects. Ms. Maffei hopes to have the fravel guide complete and
printed, ready to distribute for the spring tourism season.

3. Cornell Cooperative Extension (CCE) — Monthly report previously emailed and is in
the committee packet.
4. Tioga County Soil & Water Conservation District — No report this month.

B. Grants
1. Active Grants — See attached EDP Grant Tracking spreadsheet. Ms. Woodburn
highlighted the following:

a. CDBG Public Facilities Catholic Charities — Environmental Review. Mr. Lanning
spoke about this earlier, however there is @ resolution listed below that states
that we have to designate the project as a Type Il SEQR action so no further
environmental review is needed. The resolution also designates Legislative Chair
Sauerbrey as the Certifying Officer.

Ms. Woodburn mentioned that Catholic Charities has asked for a progress
payment when the truck is ordered, and then a final reimbursement payment
once the truck is delivered. Ms. Woodburn is working with the County Aftorney,
Mr. DeWind, on this because the risk is the possibility the truck is never delivered.
Ms. Woodburn explained further that depending on who Catholic Charities
orders the truck from, they most likely have to put 50% down themselves. This
payment would get submitted to the State for reimbursement. When the truck is
delivered, they pay the balance up front and submit for reimbursement. Ms.
Woodburn added that CDBG is a pass-through program so Catholic Charities
can't apply themselves, a municipality has fo apply. Catholic Charities will enter
into a contract with the person they are purchasing the equipment from. The
County will not have any legal obligation. In conversation with Mr. DeWind, one
idea was that Catholic Charities can get an insurance policy.

Ms. Woodburn will keep the committee informed.

b. CDBG Microenterprise — Application launched to help small businesses and is
due March 271, Thoma is helping get the word out, we are putting it out on



social media, and ads are being placed. A zoom information session will be held
for businesses. The application is on the ED&P website.

c. Town of Berkshire — ARC READY Local Government Program — Ms. Jardine
helped them write this grant which they were awarded $50,000.00. These funds
are for a Master Park Plan for George W. Smith Park and for the purchase of
equipment for the Town. Ms. Woodburn asked if the committee wanted a
resolution for providing technical assistance. The committee agreed they
wanted a resolution for this. An RFP is already in place, the state has to review
the RFP and the Town will send it out. Proposals from engineering firms to
complete the plan will be received.

C. Economic/Community Development

1. Village of Owego DRI - 5 active projects ongoing. Ms. Woodburn had before and
after photos for these projects and displayed them on the screen in the conference
room.

a. 130 Temple Street, Owego — This project is complete. A $800,000.00 project,
$150,000.00 in DRI funds were administered to convert commercial space info é
new market-rate apartments for adults 55 years of age and older.

2. Restore NY Village of Newark Valley
a. Architect selected — Moving forward with this project.

b. Environmental RFP in process — Reviewing proposals received.

4. Best Bev facility tour — ED&P staff went on the tour. Closing out @ sales tax
exemption program with them.

5. USDA / REAP meeting- Mr. Lanning spoke about this earlier, but Ms. Woodburn
added that Tioga County is one of four REAP Zones in the United States, so we get
special set-aside funding through the Rural Business Development Grant Program.
As long as the federal funds are there, we are somewhat guaranteed o get the
funds that Ms. Maffei applied for. There is a Community Facilities Program that
Towns can use these funds to purchase equipment and building improvements.
There is a water/wastewater program we might use for a possible project for the
Town of Spencer.

6. Coburn Free Library — HVAC project — Mr. Lanning spoke about this earlier.

D. Land Bank - Ms. Woodburn reported that when the program started in 2017, we initially
did a lot of demolition, now we are working more with the rehabilitation side of the
program. There are nine Board of Directors appointed by the Legislature. They meet
on a bi-monthly basis. Ms. Zubalsky-Peer took over this work a few months ago. On an
annual basis the Land Bank pays $25,000.00 to the County. An Administratfive
Agreement is in place for admin support.

Below are projects the Land Bank is working on:

1. 81 North Avenue, Owego — A mixed use building purchased has saf vacant for 17
or 18 years. There was a pigeon infestation that has been cleaned up. Ms.
Woodburn showed photos on the screen of this project in progress. Contractors are
working on electric, plumbing, and sheetrock is going up next week. The front



facade will begin when the weather breaks. There will be two apartments, and a
commercial space.

2. 32 Lyman Ave, Waverly — This project is complete; before and after photos were
displayed. This project was a partnership with Southern Tier Enterprise Group, a
subsidiary of Tioga Opportunities. This property has been listed for sale for
$189,000.00.

3. Two more rehabs the Land Bank is working on: 247 Main Street, Owego and 121
Providence Street, Waverly. Site visits are scheduled with L2 Engineering to
determine how to move forward.

4. LBl Open Round - Land Bank just submitted an application for $1.8 million for
rehabilitation and demolition projects. We have just found out we can use these
funds for new construction and are going to try to pair these funds with a home
buyer program for Temple and Liberty Streets for single family homes.

E. Workforce Development

1. Talent Supply Table Program Coordinator Meeting — Elderwood Tour. Mr. Lanning
reported on earlier.

2. Local Career Panel event at Newark Valley High School - Mr. Lanning reported on
earlier.

3. Broome-Tioga Workforce Investment Board — Ms. Woodburn noted that Ms. Abboft
is not going to renew her term on this board and recommended Amy Foster, the
Human Resource Director at TOI; resolution listed below.

F. Planning
1. 239 Reviews —

a. 2025-005: Village of Owego, Site Plan Review, Area Variance and Floodplain
Elevation, Allen Investments — Applicant wishes to construct a 475 square foot
addition to the rear of their existing 1,600 square foot business structure af 460
East Front Street to add two new offices. This location is within FEMA's regulated
floodplain; therefore, the addition must be elevated to two feet above Base
Flood Elevation. Staff advised the County Planning Board to recommend
approval of the site plan review, area variance and floodplain elevation and
the County Planning Board voted unanimously fo recommend approval.

2. TCIDA Strong Road — RFQ sent out to local engineering firms for cost estimate for
infrastructure extension of water and sewer to the site for a future housing
development. Two quotes in, expecting a few more.

3. Annual Agricultural District Inclusion and 2025 North Tioga Agricultural District 8-Year
Review Modifications: resolutions listed below. Additionally, there is a resolution to
urge NYS to fund State-Mandated Agricultural District 8-Year reviews.

G. Sustainability Management
1. NYPA EV Charging Stations — Construction is progressing.
2. Received 3 out of the 4 Private Haulers permit applications and fees.
3. GreenSheen Paint Collection Event is planned for Saturday, May 10™.
4. 2024 YTD — Numbers for 2025 won't be available until May or June.

5



VL.

VII.

a. Paid to Broome County 2024 2023
i. HHW= $9,266.55  $12,925.50
ii. E-Waste= $1,994.65  $6,000.05
b. Towns/County(EWaste)=  $2,261.20 $679.68

H. IDA
1. FAST NY Shovel Ready Program —The State is pushing this funding. Looking at new
sites in the Lounsberry area to consider studying. Empire State Development is

going to come out to look at the sites with us.

. PERSONNEL — Ms. Woodburn distributed the requested 2025 Remote Work Schedule for

ED&P staff and reported all staff members have filled out the necessary forms. Five staff
members will only work from home as needed, which is not very often, two staff members
have two set days and one staff member has one set day.

RESOLUTIONS

CO06-Urge NYS to Fund State-Mandated Agricultural District 8-Year Reviews Under AGM
Article 25AA

CO07-Authorize 2025 Request for Inclusion of Land in Agricultural Districts

CO08-Authorize 2025 North Tioga Agricultural District 8-Year Review Modifications
C10-Appoint Member (AFoster) fo the Broome-Tioga Workforce Development Board
C11-Authorize Legislative Chair Signature on RESTORE NY Co-Development Agreement
Between TCPDC and County

C19-NYS CDBG Public Facilities SEQRA Type |l

After reviewing the above resolutions, Ms. Woodburn asked this committee for support to
move the resolutions forward. The vote to support the above resolutions follows:
Legislator Ciotoli — yes
Legislator Mullen — yes
Legislator Flesher —yes

PROCLAMATIONS - N/A

ADJOURNMENT

With no further topics of discussion or questions, the meeting was adjourned at 2:20 P.M.

Respectfully Submitted,
Linda Sampson
Administrative Assistant Economic Development & Planning



pngpiALb :q1 wedboud

quosduwes HSE))
T abed 86:ST §20Z/£0/¥0 :paieJausb 3uoday
87858 8.Y 00" 25°68Z'€ZT y¥1 ‘209 0 ¥¥1 ‘209 S3SNIdX3 V1oL
0005289~ 00" 00°0SZ'TT- 000°08- 0 000°08- SANNIATY 1VLO0L

%S TC 8% 80T 0TY 00" ZS°S€0°ZTT 1240443 0 YP12es pund |eJausd VIO0L

%S " T¢ 8% 80T 0TY 00" 25°SE0°ZIT yy1'zes 0 Y¥1‘ezs juswdo|d@A8@ DLwouod3 VLOL
#%0°00T 89°¢C- 00’ 89°¢¢ 0 0 0 abuLuad dea 886885 ¢Z¥IV
%L"TS €8°6€£L°2¢ 00" LT LE€' 1T 110"y 0 110" LY 4 @dueJNSUI Yi|edH 880985 ZIVIV
2%0°00T v S8- 00" Ly S8 0 0 0 ueansur AyL|Lqesita 88558S TIYIV
#%0°00T T9 €2L'T- 00" T9'€CL'T 0 0 0 Laesuadwod sJadJom 880¥8S ZZVIV
%E"SE 95°90v ‘T 00" ¥ €82'9 06T ‘6T 0 06T '6T J4 A3LdnddS |eLD0S 880E8S ZZVIV
%9 " 8T 90°€6.°92 00’ 6" VET 9 826°¢C¢ 0 826°2¢ 4 JudWOJLIDY 93elS 8B8OT8S ZIVIV
%E" L 00°0L¥‘Y 00° 00°0S€ 08'y 0 028'Y JOYlo [ Lv/BuLuLtedl €€L0vS 2PV
%0 " 00°000°‘T 00" 00" 000°T 0 000'T auoyds @l 0990¥S ZIVIV
%0 " 00°00T 00" 00° 00T 0 00T dsuadx3d 2Jem1jos 0z90vS ZIvIv
%E"T 00°0¥6‘8T 00" 00°05¢ 06T'6T 0 06T ‘6T poJapuay S8dLAJ®S  06S0¥S Z2ZV9V
%6 00°/80'66 00" 00" €T6 000°00T 0 000 ‘00T am-asuadx3 weaboud /8¥0¥S ZZYIV
%0 " 00°00S‘T 00° 00" 00S'T 0 00S‘T Jaded/buLiutad S8YOVS ZZVIV
%0° 00°08€E 00" 00° 08€ 0 08¢ abeisod 08¥0¥S ZZ¥9V
%EZv- 2E°TI8'T 00" 2E TYS- 08Z'T 0 08¢'T saL|ddns ®>1}J0 0Z¥OYS CZHIV
%0° 00°0§ 00" 00" 0§ 0 0S osuadx3 obed LW 06£0¥S ¢Z¥IV
%0 " 00°06Z 00’ 00" 0SZ 0 0SZ pood/s|edW Q9€0vS ZZVIV
%8 9T 99°2Z1'T 00" ve L2 0S€'T 0 0S€'T nba 8d>LAJBS/posSedT 0ZE0PS ZZVIV
%0 " S TS e¢vT 00" 6V L 0ST 0 0ST Lend 9| Lqowoiny QZZOvS 2IvoV
%S LL 00°6¢¢ 00" 00°64L 000°T 0 000°‘T sana  08TOPS CZvIV
%0 0T T0'008‘T 00" 66 66T 0002 0 0002 @dueUdIULEW JBD  0200¥S ZZVI9VY
%0°0S 00°05¢ 00° 00°0S¢ 00S 0 00S syood  0¥00YVS ZZ¥IV
%E 0L 00°068 00" 00°0TT‘¢ 000°¢€ 0 000°¢€ BuLsLaJdApPY  OTOOYS ZZVIV
%8 T¢ 627222982 00" T.°959'6. 6.8°59¢ 0 6/8°59¢ awLl LLhd OTOOTS ZZ¥9oV
2%0°S¢ 00706281~ 00" 00°057'9- 000°S¢- 0 000°SZ- NWWoD 7 BWOH J3Yiro T68TZY CIVIV
2%0° 8¢ 00°000‘ST- 00" 00°000°S- 000°0¢- 0 00002~ D53 OL uoLingqLJauod 0686TF IV
2%0° 00°000°S¢€- 00" 00" 000°S¢€- 0 000°S¢€- L®2OW/ | ®I0H U0 xelL ZETTITY 2Z¥9V

702/3sN
10d

135and
379V IIVAV

SIONVHEWNIONE VNLDY LA 135and

(CEFBVAER:

SLIWLS LAV dOdddV
SYANVA.L JYNIDTHO

punsg [etausd
1404 SLINNODDY

13¥0d3y 139dng FLva-0L-dVIA
fQunos eboi|

NHOA MIN "ALNNOD YOOIL




pnapaALb :ar weaboud
Juosdwes 1J43sn

z abed 85:ST $202/£0/40 :paIedausb 1ioday

wx BPULT ‘uosdwes Ag pa31edsausd - 1¥0d3Y 40 ANI s

%S'T¢ 8801 0TV 00" 25°S€0°2TT vy1‘22s 0 yyT*2es IVL0L ANVYD

100/3SN 135and SAONVHEWNINA VNLDY LA 1395and SLWLSCAY dOdddV
12d 3719V I1LVAY A3STAFYH SHANV.L JYNIDTIHO

l

13043 139dng 3LVA-OL-¥VIA
fAunos ebol |

[
X 3

T

MYOA MIN 'ALNNOD VOOIL




pngpaA|b :QI weaboud

quosdwes 1Jasn
T obed 65:ST §202/€0/v0 :pa3eJaudb 3u0day
6.°€20°822 00" T2°0LS' vy v¥9°eLe 0 vr9 ‘2L S3ISNIAAX3 V1oL

%€ 9T 6/°€20°822 00° T2'0LS vy 92l 0 vv9'zie pund |eJaua3d TVIOL

%€ 9T 6.°€20°822 00° 120458 'vy yv9'eLe 0 y¥9°2L2 BfuLuue|d 1v1OL
2%0°00T €¢°9- 00" €279 0 0 0 abuLsd dea 886885 0208V
%L1 € eseioe 00" 15°9%9'6 000‘0¥ 0 000‘0¥ 4 9dUeJNSUI Yi|edaH 880985 0Z08Y
2%0°00T TE'€C- 00° TE €¢C 0 0 0 uednsur A3L|lLgeslLa 885S8S 0C08Y
2%0°00T <CT°0LV- 00" 170V 0 0 0 Lyesuddwod sJ@3Jom 880¥8S 0Z08Y
%E"9¢ €/°0£S°9 00° 12°26€'2 £98°8 0 £98°8 J4 A3Landas |eLdos 880€£8S 0C08Y
+%0°00T 6/4°S9/2°¢€- 00° 6/°69.'¢€ 0 0 0 4 juswddJL1dy @3e3S 880T8S 008V
%0 00°0ST‘T 00° 00° 0ST'T 0s- 00Z'T Jayao [Lv/BuLuteal €€20vS 0208V
%0 " 00009 00" 00" 009 0 009 auoyda|alL 0990vS 0Z08Y
%0 00°6/8‘v 00" 00" S/8'Y 0 S/8'v paJapuay SaJLAJDS 0650¥S 0208Y
%L EY G5°89¢ 00° S TIEY 000°T 0 000‘T Jaded/buLiutad S8YOYS 0Z08Y
%0 " 00006 00" 00" 006 0 006 abeisod 08¥0¥S 0208V
%L " 09°68% 00" 0S°0T 00§ 0 00§ saL|ddns @dL4J0 0ZvO¥S 0208V
%0 " 00°009 00" 00" 009 0 009 asuadx3 abea| LW 06E0VS 0208V
%0° 00°06T 00° 00" 06T 0 06T pood/s|eaW 09£0¥S 0208V
%0 " 00°002‘T 00° 00° 00Z°T 0 002t nb3 9d3LAJBS/pasedT (0ZEOkS 0Z08Y
%0 " 00°00¢ 00" 00" 00¢ 0 00¢ Lend 9 Lqowoiny 0ZZ0yS 0208V
%956 00" L€ 00° 00" €T8 0S8 0S 008 sana  Q8TOYS 0208Y
%0°T 00°'06.°‘T2 00° 00°0T¢ 00022 0 000'22 JLAJ®S BuLidesiuod OpTOPS 0208V
%C"0¢ 00°6.4¥ 00° 00'T¢T 009 0 009 s)oo8  Oy00vS 0Z08Y
%6 St ¥1 80T 00" 98°T6 00¢ 0 00¢ BuLsLidaApyY 0TO00¥S 0Z08Y
%L VT 68292291 00" TT°8%9°9¢ 976 ‘88T 0 976 ‘88T swLl LLh4 OTOOTS 0Z08Y

710D/38N 13a5ang
12d 379V 1IVAV.

SIADNVHEWNIONE IVNLDY alA 135and

Q3SIAIY

SLWLSCaV dOdddy¥
SUANV.L TTYNIDTHO

pund | eJdpuad
10 SLNNODDY

1¥0d3y 139ang LvVA-0L-dVIA
fAuno9 eboil

MHOA MIN ‘'ALNNOD Y9OIL (f ..u



pnqpaA|6 :q1 weabodd
6 Juosdwes 1aasn
[4 obed 6S1ST §202/€0/¥0 :poaeJauab 1uoday

4% BPULT ‘uosduwes Aq pe1eJaudd - 1Y0dIY 40 ANT sz

%€°9T  6L7€L0°8T2 00" T2 045 v vv9'eLe 0 v99°2L2 IVLOL ANVYD

aLA 135and SLWLS LAY dOdddV
A3aSTAIY SHANVH.L JVYNIDIHO

J00/3sSN 135ang SADNVHEWNONSG IVNLDV

12d 3718V IIVAY

1¥0d3d 139an9g 31va-0L-dvIA
fAuno9 eboi ]

WHOA MIN ‘ALNNOD ¥90IL




pngpakL6 101 weuboud

331edd 1Jasn
T abed 16180 §202/20/%0 :pe3eaauab Juoday
96°909 ‘092 LE°27T'T 09°686'T¥ 0Z.'€0¢€ Sv8'v 6/8°867 S3ISN3IAX3 TVLO0L
00°266 ‘1€~ 00" 00°88¢- 08¢ ‘€~ 0 08€‘2¢- S3INNIATY TVLOL

%.°ST  96°vT9°82¢ LE°LCT T 09°265‘TV ovE ‘142 SP8 ‘Y S6%99¢ pund |eJausd TVLOL
%.°ST 96 ¥19'8¢¢ LE°LTT'T 09°26S'TV ove ' TLT Y8y S6%°992 obequed B osnjey TVLOL
%8°SC  L8'TL 00" €T ¥ 9T 0 9T abutJd dva 886885 0918V
%€'87 07°26S‘8 00" 08°29¢‘€ S68°‘TT 0 S68°TT 4 @dueJnsul yi|esH 880985 09T8Y
%62 9" 2S 00" ¥S°ST 89 0 89 ueJnsul A1L|Lqesia 885585 09T8Y
%'9¢ T9°188 00" 6E°€TE S6T'T 0 S6T'T Lyesuadwod SJa)JoM 88085 09T8Y
%8°'9¢ 60'V88°€ 00" T6°8TV'T €0€°S 0 €0€‘S Jd4 A3Landds |eLdoS  880£8S 09T8Y
%L°SE  LVELS'V 00" €6°6£5°C €112 0 ETT L 4 JuswaJLl1dy 91elS 880T8S 09T8Y
%0° 00°006 ‘€ 00" 00" 006°€ 0 006'€ saJLl 089Z¥S 09T8Y
%0° 00°000°‘TT 00" 00" 000°‘TT 0 000°TT LJ40 10N) soaL|ddns 0v9ZvS 09T8Y
%0" 00°00S‘T 00" 00" 00S'T 0 00S‘T Jaded/bBuliutad S8YZPS 09T8Y
%0 " 00°000°SZ 00" 00" 000°‘SZ 0 000°SZ nopJezeH p|oOYyasnoH T9zZyS 0918V
%3'TT 6% ¢Iv 98 18°8.¢€ ¥9°802°TT 00086 0 00086 JLAJRS BuLidediuod QOyTZHS 09T8Y
%0° 00°002 00" 00" 002 0 00¢ abeisod 08¥0vS 09T8Y
%0° 00°00T 00" 00" 00T 0 00T, sur ‘sead4 ‘SiLwddd  pyPOYS 09T8V
%0° 00°000°¢ 00" 00" 0002 0 0002 saL|ddns 8dL4J0 0Z¥O¥S 0918V
%0° §2°991 00" 00" L9T 0 L9T, asuadx3 abes| LW 06£0¥S 09T8Y
%y TT  99'¢LL'T 00" v€°222 0002 0 0002 nb3a 8d>LAJ9S/pasedT 0ZEOYS 09T8Y
%0 " 00°S/T 00" 00" ST 0 S/T sena 08TOYS 09T8Y
%L°8€  LEVYI'V 0S°8¥. €T°20T'C 0052 0 0052 BuLsLiddApy 0TO0¥S 09T8Y
%0°00T 00" 00" 8T S¥8‘Y Sv8 'Yy Y8 't 0 Jamod /ebJe s)00L (08Z0ZS 09T8Y
%227 66°66L°SS 00" TO'€¥6°ST VL. 0 €VL'TL WLl Lh4 O0TOOTS 09T8Y
2%0° 00°000°0¢- 00" 00" 000°0€- 0 000°0¢€- 9115 91SBM PL|OS Z686EY 09T8Y
2%0°S.  00°00T- 00" 00°00€- 00%- 0 00t - LwJdd Jd|heH d3seM 00652y 0918V
#%Y v 00°268 ‘T~ 00" 00" 88- 086 ‘T~ 0 086 ‘T- wwod 1 |WOH J4dYylo 068TZY 09T8Y

10D/3SN
12d

135ang
318V I1IVAY.

SIADNVAEWNDIN VNIV dlA 135and SINLSCaV dO¥ddV puny |rJauUdH \v/

AIASTIATY /SHANYY.L JYNIOTHO 1404 S.LNNOIDV|

L3043 139dng 31va-O1-dVviA
fAuno9o ebol ]

YHOA MIN 'ALNNOD ¥OOIL (8}



pnqpak |6 11 wedaboud
313edd )

14 abed 15:80 §202/20/¥0 :pe3eJausb 3s0day

sy UBLLI ‘23BJd AQ POIBUBUDD - LAYOdIY 40 ANT wx

%L°ST 96" ¥19°82¢ LE7L2T°T 09°26S‘TV ove‘TLE Y8y S6v°99¢ V10l aNVHD

10D/3SN 135dnd IVNLOV alA 13as5ang SLWLSCay dOdddy
12d 318V I1IVAV A3STATY /SUANVYL YNIOTHO

e s A T S M O e 3 R R 5 S S R AR TR

1¥0d3y 139adng 3Lva-01-dViA
funo9n ebol|

NHOA MIN "ALNNOD V90IL G

SADNVAFWNIN




Tioga County Tourism

March 2025

DRI Wayfinding Sign Project
A final plan is being formatted by IDS Sign Systems and local partners with guidance from NYS
DOT. Once approved, fabrication and installation are next steps.

Tioga Antique Trail Campaign

TCT created on-site promotions for distribution to antique shops around the county. Lori has
delivered these. A digital campaign is being created to further promote this trail. A highway
sign application has been created and will be submitted to DOT to promote this program to
travelers.

Content Project Progress
Video have been completed outdoor content. River and mountain biking content shoots are
complete. Communities content project has begun.

Travel Guide
TCT contracted with Crafting a Brand to create the Travel Guide. The initial proof is complete.

Paddle the 607

The website for this paddle trail is complete. Additional Tioga County partners will be added.
Paddling and camping content were the focus. TCT is assisting with a grant for a signage
program to further promote the trail on launch sites.

Challenges and Opportunities: ILNY / USDA Grant



Comeu Cooperaﬁve EXtenSiOH CCE Tioga Hilltop Farm

343 Cass Hill Road

Tioga County T

e. tioga@cornell.edu

tioga.cce.cornell.edu
March 2024 - CCE Tioga Highlights

Prepared for the Tioga County Legislature Update (EDP, Agriculture & Tourism)

Organizational Updates:

CCE Tioga Welcomes Robyn Estrella, 4-H Youth Development Resource Educator! Robyn brings twenty
years of teaching experience and a lifelong passion for 4-H to grow our positive youth development
programs, creating engaging activities and new opportunities. She will also be supporting our Family
Resource Centers/Family Development program, cultivating relationships with families and community.

CCE Tioga — “Extension of Extension” at the Neighborhood Depot Office Hours
Smart Energy Choices (SEC), Agriculture, Horticulture & Master Gardeners, 4-H Youth Development
*Hours may be subject to change based on Programs, Outreach or Staff Meetings
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
1-4p 4-H (Robyn) | 1-4p Ag (Kelly) 1-4p Hort/MG (Jean) | 1-4p  4-H (Robyn)
1-4p SEC (Caitlin) | 1-4p  SEC(Caitlin) | 1-4p SEC (Caitlin) 1-4p  SEC (Caitlin)

Ag Literacy Week - Jean Koski organized the distribution of books to Tioga County 2" grade classes,
and joined the ranks of volunteer readers leading an activity at Tioga Hills Elementary.

CCE Tioga celebrated Ag Literacy Week hosting a Special Event: “From Pollinators to Pumpkins”.
This open to the community free event held at the Neighborhood Depot included a reading by the
author, Sue Heavenrich of “The Pie that Sue Grew”, children’s activities focused on seeds, pollinators
and insects led by CCE Tioga Agriculture and Horticulture educators and outreach for 4-H activities
highlighting the 4-H Giant Pumpkin project with 4-H Educators and Club Leaders.

Campus Connection:

Livestock Program Work Team (PWT) — Kelly participated and developed 2 webinars with the group
Cornell University Pesticide Update — continuing campus and BTl connections, and provided CCE
Tioga educators (Kelly & Jean) with updated regulatory information on the use of imidacloprid
products, working with CU/CCE and DEC on the process to bring pesticide credit trainings to Tioga
Vegetable PWT Spring Meeting — Kelly attended, reinforcing other county connections and greatly
helped with campus connections (and our strategic plans for the future of the CCE Tioga Farm)
Cornell Rice Project Group Educational Webinar— Jean presented on the genetics of rice and the
Tioga Hilltop Farm experience of growing irrigated rice
Cornell Garden Based Learning (CBGL) - Jean attended webinars centered around horticulture and
volunteer management — posting early springtime gardening guidance on CCE Tioga social media
H5N1 Updates — Two Livestock PWT Poultry subgroup meetings educational webinars were created
and shared with the public during the month — now available on YouTube
o Participation in monthly updates with the national extension organization, staying up to date
on current status in the state and country, passing info to farmers as needed/requested,
conducting media interviews. Current updates: https://agriculture.ny.gov/animals/poultry
o CCE educators website with FAQs: https://cals.cornell.edu/news/2025/02/frequently-asked-
guestions-about-bird-flu-new-york-state

Agriculture Outreach Programs

Farm support and visits during Tioga County Maple Weekend! Our farmers reported that the
weekends and open houses were very successful, most with over 100 visitors to each farm each day.



Cornell Cooperative Extension | Tioga County March 2025 Report

Agricultural Resource Group & Local Ag Meetings: Tioga County Farm Bureau (meeting & board),
ARG Newsletter and participation in ARG
Regional Ag Navigator Program — CCE Tioga investigating grants for 2026 program support
Weekly Ag Newsletter — “All Things Agriculture” sent out weekly to 200+ farmers in Tioga County by Ag
Educator Kelly Jackson —
Daily/Weekly interactions with farmers via email, phone or Farm visits as requested.
e Collaboration with FRC Program on sourdough educational activity at a playgroup
Beginning Incubator Farmer Program: Continuing to recruit beginner Incubator farmers for the 2025
growing season at CCE Tioga Hilltop Farm.

Horticulture Outreach, Collaboration & Research

Supporting Master Gardener Seed Share: Greenhouse growing for vegetable seedling giveaways and
collecting seeds from various sources, including heirloom and unusual seeds from a private donor
Composting Education at CCE Tioga Farm: Coordinating with Candor Ag class to plan and build
demonstration 3-bin compost system and a Huugel garden bed for pollinators

Community Garden Guidance: Connecting Candor Food Pantry with Candor Ag class, aiding in
utilization of garden space and resultant produce (Share Table)

Grow Line Hot Topics: Jean Koski offering garden planning Q&A + in-person Owego Office Hours
Tioga County Gardening Facebook Page https://www.facebook.com/groups/tiogacountygardeners

Master Gardeners

Vegetable Variety Trials for 2025 -participating in informational, educational & organizing webinars
County-wide Seed Share Events: preparations, distribution of materials/seeds and social media
posts for each location. Held Saturdays, 10am — 2pm Visit our website for details & Locations
Berkshire (March 29'"); Owego (April 5), Apalachin, Spencer, Waverly (April 12); Candor (April 26)
Annual Plant Sale Fundraiser: Planning event and trialing propagation techniques air layering and
rooting cuttings

Master Gardener/Horticulture E-news: sharing updates and articles of interest

Demonstration Gardens: Spring has Arrived! Pruning begun at 56 Main & other Owego locations

4-H Youth Development

e Tractor Safety & Machinery Operations Training & Certification Program continues!

e 4-H Public Presentations: 15 youth participated (ranging from 5 to 17 yrs), with 9 continuing onto
the District Public Speaking event!

e 3youth participated in Horse Bowl and Hippology which are centered on equine knowledge

e Working in collaboration with the Tioga County Agriculture society and FFA chapters, to produce
the Tioga County Youth Show and Auction at the 2025 Tioga County Fair.

Family Resource Center (FRC/Family Development Programs)
“ps, it Works!” In-person parenting classes were held at the Neighborhood Depot, Owego with 6
participants completing this series. Incredible Years Toddler series (8-weeks) begins in April.

Educators attended several training sessions including OCFS Standards of Quality recertification training,
Regional FRC meeting, CCE Tompkins Coalition Workshop, held the quarterly Parent Advisory Committee
meeting and Community Agency Partner Meeting keeping stakeholders engaged in programming.

Agencies partnered with: Church of the Nazarene, Tioga County libraries, Inspire, TC Boys & Girls Club,
First Baptist Church in Waverly, Spencer-Van Etten, Waverly and Owego-Apalachin School Districts,
WAVR, Owego Pennysaver, Morning Times, PACT, Tioga County Health Dept., Early Intervention, DSS.

Page | 2



Cornell Cooperative Extension | Tioga County March 2025 Report

FRC Success Stories: Parents who attended the Nutrition class series made discoveries about how much
sugar was in their drinks. Parents were able to take home fresh vegetables, after trying them at a recent
Spencer Library activity, supported by the OCFS FRC Basic Needs grant program.

FRC Playgroup # of # of # Total # of Attendees Total #
Location Playgroups Families of kids (unduplicated) Duplicated
Spencer Library 3 11 12 22 38
Waverly Playgroup 2 1 2 3 3
Waverly Nutrition Class 1 2 3 3
Nichols Library 3 2 2 4 8
Spencer Inspire 4 13 23 39 88
Berkshire 3 11 11 8 22
Candor 4 50 (4 new!) 72 40 122
TOTAL 20 89 124 119 284

Nutrition: Sophie Torres has been working around the county providing SNAP-Ed programming. In
collaboration with our FRC team, 2 adults and 5 children completed the Nutrition class series in Waverly.

Smart Energy Choices: Eileen Hanrahan (CEA/Lead) has been training Caitlin Tucker (our new
Community Energy Adviser - CEA), doing outreach development, introducing her to community partners.
Local Impact: -
e Reached 59 Tioga County residents, including outreach at Richford mobile food pantry
e Advised 18 residents including assisting with access to the Empower+ program, referring to home
repair agencies (USDA), connecting to the Public Utility Law Project and NYSEG customer advocate
e Connected with 12 non-profit partners within the Tioga County Community Network
e Established partnerships with Empower+ contractors, Tioga Opportunities, and Apalachin Public
Library
Eileen continues to work with and support CEA’s across the Southern Tier Region, participating in
NYSERDA hub leadership meetings and conducting monthly regional Contractor Partnership Meeting

WIOA Youth Employment Program/Workforce: WIOA Youth Employment Program Staff attended the
NYATEP Youth Practitioner's Training in Saratoga Springs NY. Lisa & Erin also participated in a Workforce
Development Brunch and Bond at Oneonta Job Corp to improve collaborative efforts for progress reporting
when clients are referred to Job Corp Centers and program referral to Youth Programs when students
return home from Job Corp Centers.

Success Stories: 1 Youth participant completed Work Experience and was hired by the employer for full
time employment! Plus 5 youth participants found full time employment this month!

Respectfully Submitted, Tioga.cce.cornell.edu | 607.659.5694 | Tioga@cornell.edu

Kristi K. Snyder, Ph.D. } ] i

; . | Hilltop Community Farm at CCE Tioga
Executive Director | Agriculture Development & Outreach
CCE Tioga | Community Office Hours at Neighborhood Depot

Comell Cooperative Extension
South Cwatrsd NY Dalry and Field Crops Program

3N Carmall Canperative Ditansion

i

i

| il

3 3 v } | T4 oman prergy Choices
e s owion 98 b e

i
Comed Cooperative Extension is an empioyer and educstor recognized i Get Social 3 Facebook/CCETioga
for valuing AAVEEO, Protectod Veterans, and indiiduals with Dissbiiios |  WithUs!
and provides equal program and empioyment 0pportunities. i @ Instagram/CCETioga

Page | 3



Auno? edoi] - 199yspeasds Supjoes] Juesn 4a3

X 00'00T‘€Z8'T $ paiiwqns uoped||ddy syoafoud uoneyl|iqeyal pue uopijowag punoy uado (1g1) 2A: | yueg pueq Jadol| T
X 00°000°006 S ssadoud ul - papiemy 7 @seyd (Ig1) aAeniu| jueg puel 2adoL| 11
X 0000000 $ ssa%0.d U] - papiemy 53500 |euofiesado € Jeaj ‘T aseyd (191) @Alzeniu] yueg pueq 2adol| ot
X 00'9TE'8EY  $ ssao04d ul - paplemy qeyas 033MO ‘@NUSAY YMON #9-79 19215 UlBN AN 2adoL| 6
S X 00'00522 S pajuwgns uoijes)jddy ue|d o|8a3e]3s UMouMoQ | uielBoid salpns Ayjiqisead pue Bujuue|d as3| AsjjeA yiemaN jo a3e|IAl 8
X 00'000'66 S ssa20.d Ul - paplemy weJs8o.1d asea] juawdinb3 0Qagy vasn val Aunoj edoil| £
X 00'00006 S ssa20.4d u| - papiemy ueld Buliasuidug Asgsuno 0agy vasn valAunopedoll| 9
ON X 00°0V2'CIT S paiiwgns uonedyiddy sapeJddn/saseyoind juawdinb3 jueln spoompJeH eSol S
UOI3eZIUIBPOIA S134NJ0BNUEBIA |[eWS 05T
S\ X 0000005 S ssaco.d u| - papiemy Sj4ed yuws ‘M 881099 1o ueyd yaed Ja1se\ wel304d JUaWUIDA0D |B0T AQYIY DYV alysyseg joumol| ¥
SaA X 00°000°000'T $ paniwgns uoped||ddy sweigoud 315 ulyoejedy 08amO / $3008 juawdojanaq eaiv/(vfll) asovo| €
1§ 10} Buip|ing 2dUeUSIUIEW 13WLIOY JO INO P|ing 10V SQOf 1§ JUSWIASIAU| 2INJONIISELU| DYY
ON X 00°000°000°T $ paniwgns uciiealddy sweJi3o.d 315 uiyaejedy 08amo / 53009 Bujpuads pa3aauiq Ajeuolssaiduo) asovol| ¢
19 4oy Bulp|ing 2UBUS3UIBW J3ULIO} JO 3NO p|Ing
SaA X 00'0TtyzeEL S ssa00.d Ul - paplemy AN 19235 BIYM 9T-pT Pue QT Jo uoney|igeyay 1IIA PUnoY AN 210353y as3| As|ieA seman jo 38ejial T
32URIS|SSY! : -
uojInjosa H ueo)|dd
13Nj0SaY {eajual 821n0SYy paisanbay nieis asoding 92n0§ JUeID) juedljddy
sz-dy
mw_u:wm< apIsInQ - uww.._m_umw._nm u:_v_umh._. juels 4d3i
VN VN 00'000°00S S pajywqns uoijeayjddy yoeajno Ajjunwiiod pue JUBJD JUBWISSISSY P|aljumo.g Yd3 Aunop egol|| TT
SJUDLISSASSE |BJUBLIUOIIAUS ‘Bujuue|d ‘salI0juaAUL
p|aljumo.q 1o} Bulpuny apiro.d 03 JueJ3 JUSWISSISSY
VN YN o0'ces'sve S ssa00.d ul - paplemy “swelJoud anosal pooj pue ‘uaydly Ayunuwiwiod saniieyd d1joyied — sal|ioed dljgnd 544D Ayunop eSoi) | TT
‘2B s||14s 41| YsijqeIsa 03 3on.3 pooy 3jiqoN
VN VN 00°'000'ST S ssa20.d U 3n0aso|D *sainixy 31| @37 pue 3uswdinba 3uidesspue| 94309]3 AJojuanu| 193]4 YAY3SAN Ajuno) edoll| 0T
VN VN 00'8£67C S ssa004d ul - paplemy “lood o1jqnd 08amQ A 1oddns 0} Bulpund SINIMS AN Awnojedoll| 6
VN YN 00'00SCTC S ssao0.d ul - paplemy *saakojdwa welgo.d aslidisiusodN 590D Aunop edoll| 8
52| JO BAl} Y)IM SsSBUISNQ ||BWS J0j Bulpun} SpiAoid
YN VN 00°000°99T S ssadoud ul - paplemy o08amo Ajuno) egol] ‘|||A punoy AN 2403say ds3 Ayuno) edol i
40 23e||IA 341 Ul SAY YLION T8 JO uolielljiqeysy
VN VN 88'vLL/95 $ ssa004d Ul - papliemy *235BM SnopJezey pjoyasnoy 4o [esodsip swiel8o.ld a)se/\ snopiezeH pjoyasnoH Awnop edoil| 9
Jadold 3y} Joj poyjaLu OUIOUODD pue Bjes B aAeY| 1B 3uljoAoay pue uolonpay A1seM [edPIuni
03 AJuno ay3 sMo||y *AJunoD 3y UIYHM saidajells
uoionpal a3sem Juawajdw pue puedxa o3 JageueN
Ajjigeulelsns e ujejujew 03 Ayuno) eS80l 10} SMO||Y
VN YN 00°'000°000°C $ ssao04d ul - paplemy Auno) suoneys 8uiBieydo A3 — VdAN Aunojegoll| §
egol] ul sqnH A3 Suidiey) ised -  ysljiqeisa o1
VN VN [:10 ssado.d u| - papiemy Auno) 3|lgowmous SAN Aunoj edoll| ¥
egol1] ul sqnjd G 1oy weiSold Jueld sjlgowmous
YN VN 00°000°000'T $ ssad04d ul - papiemy 08amQ 192115 e 05-8Y 4O Uoielljiqeyay s|ied) e301] — ||A PUnoy AN 240353y 4s3 Aunojesoll| €
VN VN 00'000°008'T $ ssad0.d ul - papiemy 08aMmQ 393135 JuU0L4 O8T-8LT 0 UonelljigeyaYy 3|l)uedialp pue A1auoijdz4uo) Auno) edoll| T
95NOH J3AlY — |A PUnoy AN 24031saY ds3
VN VN 00°'000°000°€ $ $$320.d Ul 3n03s0[ qnH jodag Aunopedoll| T
11J014 UON 30daQ pooyioqySiaN JO UOIONIISUOD MAN| POoYJoqyaIaN 2oy — sall|ided dljgnd 5840
adueIs|s:
uopnjosay L] m.u paisanbay smels asodind 224n05 JueID uedyddy’
sz-udy




REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -25 ADOPTING THE 2025 - 2034
TIOGA COUNTY LOCAL SOLID WASTE
MANAGEMENT PLAN

WHEREAS: Tioga County Department of Solid Waste has developed a new
local solid waste management plan in accordance with 6 NYCRR Part
366; and

WHEREAS: The New York State Department of Environmental Conservation
(NYSDEC) has provided an “approvable” lefter to the Tioga County
Department of Solid Waste indicating that the plan meets the
requirements; and

WHEREAS: The Department of Solid Waste solicited public input on the
plan during a public comment period and public information session; and

WHEREAS: The Tioga County Legislature supports the adoption of the 2025-
2034 Tioga County Solid Waste Management Plan; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature hereby formally adopfts the
2025-2034 Tioga County Local Solid Waste Management Plan. Tioga
County will implement and maintain the solid waste management system
as described in the Plan and will submit biennial updates to NYSDEC as
required by 6 NYCRR Part 366. This resolution shall take effect immediately.



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE
FINANCE COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. -25 ACCEPT NY SWIMS GRANT AWARD AND
MODIFY 2025 BUDGET

WHEREAS: Per Resolution No. 236-24, the Tioga County Legislature
authorized a grant application to the NY SWIMS Grant Program in
partnership with the Village of Owego to supplement Marvin Park Pool
lifeguards’ salaries for 2024 and 2025; and

WHEREAS: NYS has awarded this contract in the amount of $17,725, plus a
$3,545 cash match from the Village of Owego, totaling $21,270; and

WHEREAS: The Village of Owego has committed in writing to upfront the
entire $21,270 and will be reimbursed by Tioga County via a subrecipient
agreement in the amount of $17,725 from said state grant award; and

WHEREAS: Authorization to accept funding, to modify the 2025 budget, and
to appropriate said funds requires Legislative approval; therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature hereby authorizes
acceptance of said grant award to Economic Development & Planning;
and be it further

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature hereby authorizes the Chair
of the Legislature to sign any and all grant-related contracts and other

paperwork, contingent upon review and approval by the County Attorney;
and be it further

RESOLVED: That the 2025 Budget be modified and funds be appropriated
to the following accounts:

FROM: A8020 439890 State Aid-Community Service $17,725

TO: A8020 540140 Contracting Services $17,725



REFERRED TO: ED&P COMMITTEE

RESOLUTION NO. - 25 APPOINT MEMBER TO THE
TIOGA COUNTY LOCAL
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

WHEREAS: Dave Astorina resigned from the Local Development
Corporation Board at the end of his term effective 3/31/24; and

WHEREAS: Brielle Woods has expressed her desire to serve on the Local
Development Corporation Board to fill Dave Astorina’s term that expired
3/31/24; and

WHEREAS: The Tioga County Local Development Corporation Board of
Directors has found Brielle Woods wiling and able to fill said vacancy;
therefore be it

RESOLVED: That the Tioga County Legislature hereby appoint Brielle
Woods to fill Dave Astorina’s expired term 4/15/25 - 3/31/28.



